# **Public Document Pack**

## Minutes of the meeting of the Council

Date: Tuesday, 11 July 2023

**Venue:** Council Chamber, Ealing Town Hall, New Broadway, Ealing W5

2BY

## Attendees (in person): Councillors

H Tailor (Mayor)M Ahmed, S Ahmed, J Anand, P Anand, J Ball, J Gallant, C Anderson, T Sidhu, R Dheer, B Mahfouz, C Summers, L Brett, D Crawford, A Young, P Driscoll, Y Gordon, H Haili, M Hamidi, B Hashani, C Hersch, M Iqbal, A Jammu, S Jassal, Y Johnson, H Kaur Dheer, A Kelly, S Khan, I Kingston, P Knewstub, S Kohli, S Kumar, K Dhindsa, T Mahmood, G Malcolm, S Manro, D Martin, J Martin, P Mason, M Midha, F Mohamed, K Mohan, K K Nagpal, I Nijhar, S Padda, G Quansah, F Conti, A Raza, M Rice, R Baaklini, C Sharma (Deputy Mayor), G Shaw, D Costigan, G Stafford, K Crawford, C Tighe, L Wall, R Wall, B Wesson, S Donnelly and A Zissimos

# 1 Apologies for Absence and Attendance

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Steed, Busuttil, Murtaza and Alexander.

Councillors Blacker, Kim Nagpal, Rai, Bains and Sahota were in attendance virtually.

### 2 Declarations of Interest

Councillor Crawford declared that he would recuse himself from item 8 – questions from members of the Council due to potential legal action he was bringing against the Council.

# 3 Minutes of the Meeting held on 13 June 2023

**RESOLVED:** That the minutes of the meeting held on 13 June 2023 be agreed as a correct record of the meeting.

# 4 Mayor's Announcements

The Mayor updated the Council on his activities and it was noted that:

- The Mayor had been involved in local commemorations of the NHS's 75<sup>th</sup> anniversary of its founding.
- The Mayor had led the Borough's marking of Armed Forces Day and Reserves day though a public ceremony on the Saturday and private reception for staff who were veterans serving reservists on Reserves Day.

- The Annual Civic Mass was held on 2 July.
- The Mayor had attended various events to mark Windrush 75, including an event organised by the Council as well as a reception for pioneers from the Windrush generation.
- The Mayor attended the London Pride March and joined staff on the march for the first ever time. He also held a pride reception for local LGBTQ+ groups.
- His future plans were that he would be attending Ealing Beer Festival, and there would be a summer event at a cricket club.
- Best of luck to the Lionesses and Ealing's Chloe Kelly in the Women's World Cup.
- The second Mayoral Charity would be announced imminently.

#### 5 Petitions from Members of the Public

There were no petitions from members of the public.

#### 6 Petitions from Members of the Council

There were no petitions from members of the Council.

# 7 Questions from Members of the Public

There were no questions from Members of the Public.

#### 8 Amendment to the order of business

The Mayor moved, Councillor Shaw seconded, and it was

**RESOLVED:** That the Majority Group Motion for Debate be considered as the next item of business due to external speakers being invited to contribute to the debate.

### 9 Majority Group Motion for Debate

Councillor Anderson proposed and Councillor Mason seconded the Majority Group Motion for Debate.

Margaret Noel, Judy Wellington and Blossom Jackson were invited to speak to Council about their experiences of coming to the UK from the Caribbean as part of the Windrush generation.

Councillors Hersch, Mason and Knewstub responded to the motion.

During the debate, it was moved, seconded and agreed that the question now

be put.

#### RESOLVED:

#### This Council Notes:

- On 22nd June, people from across the United Kingdom came together to mark the 75th anniversary of the arrival of the HMT Empire Windrush, which brought over 800 people from the Caribbean to London in 1948.
- In the 75 years since, those British-Caribbean pioneers and their descendants – have contributed hugely to the Britain we are all proud to call home today.

#### This Council Believes:

- That those who came to the UK as part of the 'Windrush generation' made a huge contribution to making modern Britain
- That the treatment of this generation by successive Conservative Governments has been shameful.
- That the Windrush generation have had to make do with pleasant words and platitudes for too long, and that the Government must take corrective action immediately.

This council therefore resolves to demand that the UK Government commits to implementing all 30 recommendations submitted by Wendy Williams in March 2020 – in full – as soon as possible.

We ask that the Government urgently prioritise:

- The Home Secretary clearly setting out specifically how she, her Department and, where necessary, other institutions, will implement each recommendation and to what timescale.
- The Home Secretary reversing her decision to disregard introducing a Migrants' Commissioner; review the role of the Independent Chief Inspector of Borders and Immigration; and to run reconciliation events.
- The Home Office regularly reporting to Parliament and the public the progress it is making on implementing each recommendation.
- Providing an unqualified apology to those affected by this grave injustice, as per Recommendation 1 of the Williams Report.

### 10 Questions from Members of the Council

Councillor Rice asked Councillor Donnelly:

Does the portfolio holder agree with me that in these challenging economic times, it is more than important than ever that this administration continues to handle the council's budget responsibly?

# Councillor Donnelly Responded:

I couldn't agree more. The Council under Labour has a track record of sound financial management. The resilience built in had allowed the council to manage economic shocks that had taken place including COVID and the damage to the economy from the Truss premiership. The Council had built up its reserves appropriately, but after a decade of austerity there weren't many more savings that could be made. The pressure on budgets had left some authorities to take risks with public finances that had left them dangerously exposed to increases in interest rates. Funding simply wasn't enough to keep up with demand and increases in pressures in several areas such as adult social care and homelessness were a threat to the financial sustainability of the sector as a whole. Michael Gove had announced the launching of the Office for Local Government but hadn't announced what Oflog would do.

### Councillor Ball asked Councillor Knewstub:

The Log Cabin Charity has been operating under a licence ever since 2011, as the previous lease had expired, and has been seeking a new lease ever since. When will the Council finally agree their new lease?

### Councillor Knewstub responded:

The Council was looking to renew the lease with the charity and will hope to get it agreed in the next few months. There were several reasons for the delay including needing to align terms with other providers and agree a concurrent service level agreement for the delivery of the statutory service the charity delivers for the Council.

### Councillor Conti asked Councillor Kamaljit Kaur Nagpal:

Will there be any capital costs to be met from Ealing schools' budgets as a result of the London Mayor's one-year universal free school meal policy?

### Councillor Kamaljit Kaur Nagpal responded:

55 Schools in the Borough were members of the Ealing Schools Catering Consortium, as well as four schools whose catering needs were met by a PFI consortium. For the consortium, investment was being held back until longer term plans had been made on this policy. However some investment was being made to replace old, inefficient equipment and purchasing additional equipment costing £275,000 across the 55 schools and members of the consortium working at an average of £5,000 per school. This expenditure had already been planned but spending was brought forward to meet this emerging need. The costs will be recovered from the individual schools and therefore won't cost the schools budget. The costs to the PFI schools

was not known. The Council was not involved in the provision of catering for schools not in the consortium. The total grant from the GLA for school meals is anticipated for £4.5 million and there wasn't intended to be any clawback if participation was below 90% therefore if there was lower than expected participation some of this underspend could be used to pay for capital costs.

#### Councillor Baaklini asked Councillor Brett:

Can the portfolio holder please provide an update on how the council is supporting those with the toughest barriers to employment into the workplace?

## Councillor Brett responded:

I am proud of the work done in Ealing to help support residents with the toughest barriers to employment into the workplace. Officers had been working tirelessly with local partners to deliver programmes to improve employability through training, education, information and guidance. We provided a wide range of programmes for people from all sorts of background who are struggling to get back in to the workplace. These include the borough employment support programme, the health and workplace programme, horizons pathway programme. These are three of many programmes in place. All this alongside every job and apprenticeship fair the council put on over the year, the employment support offer from the council is incredible. The reward for this hard work was that we didn't just match the target of helping 500 Ealing residents into work, but we exceeded it by supporting 1700 residents with the toughest barriers to work into employment.

#### Councillor Gallant asked Councillor Manro:

Will the portfolio holder update on the rollout of a new system to coordinate Section 106 payments, as announced in the 2022 Council Plan?

#### Councillor Manro responded:

I am very happy to update you on this system. We are taking this commitment incredibly seriously as it is an important way we get the most out of new developments on behalf of our residents. The system is currently live and functioning internally. A dedicated team of officers are working hard to ensure that the system is populated fully with historical and new applications. A cross departmental approach across our planning, finance and legal teams has been key to the success of this project. It is ensuring every single penny of section 106 money is accounted for and allocated to improve the physical and social infrastructure of the Borough.

## Councillor Kingston asked Councillor J Anand:

Can the portfolio holder update the council on the extension and improvement of the CCTV network in Ealing?

# Councillor J Anand responded:

As a result of the Council upgrading the CCTV network, residents were already reporting they were feeling safer. The network has 44 new cameras following the Safer Ealing for Women listening exercise last year. These were part funded by a successful bid to the Mayor's Office for Policing and Crime. One of the key improvements in the Borough was the delivery of 18 new cameras in areas that women and girls reported they felt less safe. As a result of the upgrade programme all of Ealing's seven towns have upgraded HD cameras covering town centre locations. Full HD coverage has also been extended all the way down the Uxbridge Road corridor. Ealing is continuing to look to innovate as a leader on emerging technologies, including the nomad project where police CCTV cameras can be deployed quickly to emerging concern to capture evidence and deter crime. The majority of our blind spots have now been covered and we will continue to make investments to ensure women feel safe in Ealing.

#### Councillor Sidhu asked Councillor Mason:

Can the Leader give an update on efforts by the council to work with constructively the Government to improve the lives of residents in Ealing?

## Councillor Mason responded:

We work constructively with lots of stake holders, including Councils controlled by other parties. We do this with close collaboration and work really hard to get wins for our residents. This includes extending provision for children with special educational needs, holiday provision, getting a senior police officer responsible for the borough or winning concessions from the Mayor to extend the ULEZ scrappage scheme to more of our residents. When it comes to working with the government its more patchy. We have written to the government four times since the election, including on High Speed 2, enforcing 20 mph speed limits in the borough and on each occasion the government has come back and said no. Central government has a record of treating local government as an afterthought and not working in a co-operative way.

# 11 Opposition Group Motion for Debate

Councillor Conti moved and Councillor Gallant seconded the Opposition Group motion for Debate.

Councillor Malcolm moved and Councillor Ball seconded an amendment to the motion.

Councillors Costigan, J Anand, Mahfouz, Johnson, Manro, Stafford, Mohamed, Raza, Ball, Wesson, Knewstub, Blacker, Gallant and Rice responded to the motion.

Councillor Malcolm summed up the amendment and Councillor Conti summed up the motion.

Following the debate, a vote was taken on the amendment and it FELL.

A vote was then taken on the motion and it FELL.

#### 12 Motions not for Debate

There were no motions not for debate.

# 13 Changes to the Constitution

**RESOLVED:** That the changes to the Constitution set out in the appendices are approved.

# 14 Appointments to Committees and Other Bodies

There were no appointments to Committees and Other Bodies.

# 15 Urgent Key Decisions Exempted from Call-in

There were no urgent key decisions exempted from call-in.

Meeting commenced: 7.15 pm

Meeting finished: 9.25 pm

Signed: Dated: Tuesday, 19 September 2023

H Tailor (Mayor)

